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Division of Finance and Business Operations
	
	Procurement & Strategic Sourcing  

5700 Cass Avenue, suite 4200

Detroit, Michigan   48202

(313) 577-3734 

FAX (313) 577-3747


January 22, 2015
Minutes of the Pre-bid Conference

RFI for Library Services Platforms for DALNET 

Dated January 15, 2015
The pre-bid conference for the RFI for Library Services Platforms for DALNET was held on January 22, 2015 at 10:00 am. Valerie Kreher reviewed the administrative requirements of the pre-bid package, especially concerning details such as bid due dates and who vendors may contact during the live bid process. Steven Bowers of DALNET, discussed the expectations and scope of work.

The pre-bid conference attendees sign in sheet and meeting minutes are available for downloading from the University Purchasing Web Site at http://www.forms.purchasing.wayne.edu/Adv_bid/Adv_bid.html.

Numerous simple questions and answers were addressed at the pre-bid meeting. Some of the issues were as follows: 
1. The Deadline for project related questions is January 26, 2015, 12:00 noon.

2. There is new information on Schedule A and at least one new question on Schedule B.  A new Schedule A and Schedule B is attached to this form.  Please use the new forms attached for your quote.

3. Additional information added to Schedule A includes additional information that was requested by vendors at the meeting, including various item and bib counts, FTE counts for each individual institution, and the number of staff accounts.

4. Schedule A now also asks for separate pricing for DPL and WSU as well as the original pricing information requested for the consortium as a whole.

5. Although currently listed on the DALNET membership page at http://www.dalnet.org/about/member.php, Beaumont Health System and John D. Dingell VA Medical Center will no longer be part of the DALNET consortium in 2016 and should not be considered part of this RFI.

6. Adjusted holdings for Detroit Public Library are reflective of the number of records the institution maintains within their current integrated library system software/database. 

7. The main impetus for selecting a new system now is driven by the desire to have a system that manages both print and electronic materials.  Our current Horizon system is a traditional integrated library system and is primarily designed to handle print (physical) media management.

8. DALNET consortium members do not currently have any shared licensing for full-text or indexing and abstracting database subscriptions although there is some overlap in their subscriptions and all members have access to the databases licensed for state-wide use in Michigan through Mel.org. Some joint licensing is anticipated in the future, in addition to separate licenses.
9. If DALNET moves forward with migrating to a new system, staggered cohort migration is a possibility.

10. DALNET member libraries will need a system that can interface via NCIP, or other means such as nightly data loads, with MeLCat, the state-wide library catalog in Michigan which is currently running on the Millennium integrated library system from Innovative Interfaces, Inc. (III). 

11. Please share any additional information that would enable DALNET to better promote the use of library resources within its member institutions and/or the sharing of items among consortium members.

12. Parking on WSU Campus is $7.00/parking lot entry.

13. Submittals are due February 9, 2015 at 4:00 pm, to be time date stamped in Procurement & Strategic Sourcing located in the Academic/ Administration Bldg., 5700 Cass Avenue, 4th Floor – Suite 4200, Detroit, MI 48202.  Please Note:  your bid must be received on Schedule A to be considered. 

14. An electronic version of your response is required, which should be submitted to Valerie Kreher at ab4889@wayne.edu and copied to Robin Watkins at ag5342@wayne.edu.
15. Any responses, materials, correspondence, or documents provided to the University are subject to the State of Michigan Freedom of Information Act and may be released to third parties in compliance with that Act, regardless of notations in the VENDOR's Proposal to the contrary.

Additional information not mentioned at the RFI meeting: 
WSU and Steve Bowers use various integrated library systems for teaching an annual course on Integrated Library Systems.  Systems used in the course may or may not be part of the RFI responses but use in the course has not bearing on the DALNET project.

The WSU Dean of University Libraries and the School of Library and Information Science, Sandra Yee, is the 2014/2015 Chair of the OCLC Board of Trustees.  She is also the current Chair of the DALNET Board of Directors.

All questions concerning this project must be emailed to: Valerie Kreher, Procurement & Strategic Sourcing at 313-577-3720 Email: ab4889@wayne.edu (copy to Robin Watkins, Email:  ag5342@wayne.edu) by 12:00 p.m., January 26, 2015.  

Do not contact DALNET, or other University Units, directly as this may result in disqualification of your proposal.
Thank you
Valerie Kreher, 

Senior Buyer, Purchasing





313-577-3720
CC:
Robin Watkins, Steve Bowers, Attendees list.
SCHEDULE A - INFORMATION SCHEDULE

Request for Information for a Library Services Platform:  

Vendors are to include preliminary pricing information in Schedule A: Information Schedule.  This schedule is free form in nature, so Vendors simply need to ensure adequate information is included to fully understand the potential cost for the Vendor’s products and services.  Included with this should be any annual license information, ongoing maintenance, and projected implementation service costs.  However, pricing is a guideline and not a quote, since responses may or may not lead to the eventual release of a formal Request for Proposal (RFP).  

Please provide pricing as a base bid to include the entire consortium and a second bid if Detroit Public Library and Wayne State University decline to opt in.  

Additional Information

	
	Annual Circulation
	Print

Bib Count
	Print

Item Count
	Electronic Bib Count
	Electronic Item Count
	Staff Accounts
	FTE / Population

	DALNET Consortium
	115,653
	1,704,981
	1,543,941
	253,135
	351,594
	318
	55,858

	Detroit

Public Library
	1,483,329
	1,882,152
	3,369,510
	4,148
	4,148
	1,133
	780,000

	Wayne State University
	45,812
	3,113,469
	3,787,722
	643,778
	643,896
	

215
	21,625

	Total
	1,644,794
	6,700,602
	8,701,173
	901,061
	999,638
	1,666
	857,479


Individual FTE Counts for Each DALNET Member

	Institution
	Institution Type
	FTE / Population

	Adam Cardinal Maida Alumni Library
	Academic
	550

	Arab American National Museum
	Special
	500

	Concordia University, Ann Arbor
	Academic
	1,000

	Detroit Institute of Arts
	Special
	1

	Detroit Medical Center
	Special
	4

	Detroit Public Library
	Public
	780,000

	The Henry Ford – Benson Ford Research Center
	Special
	1,200

	Macomb Community College
	Academic
	14,778

	Marygrove College
	Academic
	1,442

	McLaren – Macomb (Health Care)
	Special
	2,900

	Oakland Community College
	Academic
	13,595

	Oakland County Library
	Special/Public
	3,500

	Rochester College
	Academic
	1,134

	University of Detroit Mercy
	Academic
	4,176

	Walsh College
	Academic
	1,339

	Wayne County Community College District
	Academic
	9,735

	Wayne State University
	Academic
	21,625

	Total
	
	857,479


Base Bid (for all of DALNET, including Detroit Public Library and Wayne State University)

	Item
	Brief Description
	Price Information

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


Bid for DALNET Consortium (without Detroit Public Library and Wayne State University)

	Item
	Brief Description
	Price Information

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


Bid for Detroit Public Library 

	Item
	Brief Description
	Price Information

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


Bid for Wayne State University

	Item
	Brief Description
	Price Information

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	


Email your responses to Valerie Kreher, Email:  ab4889@wayne.edu and copy Robin Watkins, at ag5343@wayne.edu.  Remember, your response must be in the format provided and be received in the Purchasing Department by February 9, 2015 by 4:00 pm
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SCHEDULE B – VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE
Vendors must provide the information requested in Schedule B: Vendor Questionnaire.  For the first section, an answer of “Yes” or “No” is all that is required.  That is followed by 12 individual questions that should be responded to accordingly:
	Below are the characteristics we would anticipate the system to have.  The ability to:
	Does your system fulfill all of the functions within the rows below?

	
	Yes
	No

	Product Overview

	A cloud-based unified platform system that provides means of managing library services including, but not limited to:

· Acquisitions

· Cataloging and Authority Control
· Circulation
· Electronic Resource Management (ERM)

· “A – Z” list with Link Resolver
· Authentication Services (for authorizing access to licensed materials)
· Interlibrary Loan/Document Delivery (internal and external to system) 
· Inventory Management

· Reserve Book Room

· Serials Management
· System Reporting and Analytics (include three sample reports, including one showing usage statistics for physical items and one showing usage statistics for electronic resources)
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	A system that is designed to handle workflows, management, and access, for all library resources:

· Both print (physical item) and electronic resources

· Including provision of analytics and reporting for all resources in the system
	
	

	
	
	

	A Public Interface catalog that:

· Incorporates discovery system components, i.e. a single search interface for finding all of the library’s print materials, physical mediums, electronic resources, and digital content
· Can search metadata and full-text for electronic resources
· Has a separate interface for each participating library
· Can create custom search facets and limits for each separate library
· Has ability to expand individual library catalog searches to holdings for specified participating member libraries
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	The system needs to be robust yet easy to use:

· Consolidated, refined, and less repetitive workflows

· Workflows designed to refocus efforts on existing services and offering potential new services
	
	

	
	
	

	All system features need to be optional or separately configured for each participating institution:

· Libraries can comply with separate local policy

· Libraries cannot access data from other institutions unless given consent

· Libraries have access to changing their own parameters and settings

· Libraries have access to running their own reporting features
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	General System Requirements

	Below are the characteristics we would anticipate the system to have the ability to:
	Does your system fulfill all of the functions within the rows below?

	
	Yes
	No

	State-of-the Art user controlled reporting, including dashboards and historical data reporting
	
	

	Application should also have the ability to integrate with other reporting tools and/or data extracts
	
	

	· Adaptable and easy to use workflows
	
	

	Allow for changing business requirements and governmental regulations including contract negotiations in a timely manner with fewer resources; new updates implemented quickly and efficiently
	
	

	Application should be adaptable to the emerging functional requirements based upon quickly changing strategic directives
	
	

	Ability to change the process flows made through administration consoles instead of through modifications to program source code
	
	

	· Are your processes self-documented? 
	
	

	· Integrate with institutional access management (LDAP) separately for each institution in a consortium
	
	

	Having a robust security model for ease of user access management and role definitions
	
	

	Web accessible, self-serve application with a robust architecture
	
	

	Integrate with external vendors’ systems, with built-in integrations or robust APIs (i.e.,  media vendors for print and electronic materials, institutional financial data systems, and course management systems).  Vendors may wish to include a list of specific major vendors that meet this criteria, elsewhere in their RFI response.
	
	

	Applications should be flexible, scalable, and configurable for ease of use for end users
	
	

	Seamless maintenance/system upgrade schedule
	
	

	
	
	


I. General Questions & Required Information

1. Why should DALNET consider your company over another?

2. What is your integration strategy for the above mentioned systems and external vendors?

3. What is the average size of your client base (in terms of FTE) and what consortia do you serve?  (Please explain makeup of consortia you may serve)

4. Does the system provide the ability to manage external documents (i.e., PDF, MS Word docs, MS Project docs) and external links? Please describe:

5. Describe the supported Internet browsers and bandwidth requirements of the staff login for the proposed system

6. Describe provisions for managing multiple environments (i.e., Development, Test and Production instances of the application.)
7. What are your training strategies and how do you facilitate and deliver them to your customers?

8. What is the average implementation schedule for Mid-Size/Large organizations and complex consortia? 

9. Discuss any previous experience your company has in migrating data from the Horizon software to your current platform, including experience with any consortia or other large complex Horizon databases as may be relevant.

10. Describe timelines as well as pre- and post-implementation client resources required.

11. Describe the maintenance update/product release strategy (i.e., development cycles, enhancements process, scheduling of downtime).  Are the releases covered by maintenance agreements and/or annual subscription services?)

12. If your application is a cloud-based platform solution, please also answer the following questions:

1. What is your security strategy for the following:

a. FERPA regulations

b. HIPAA regulations

c. Library Privacy Act (of Michigan)

d. Data confidentiality and the return of data and associated unstructured documents to WSU at the end of the contract

e. If it is a multi-tenant application, describe your security standards

f. User security (staff and library users)

2. Describe your Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity strategies of the application

3. Has your application passed a SAS 70 Audit?

13. What additional information would be helpful for us to consider at this time?
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